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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd like to call

          3  this meeting of the Subcommittee on Zoning and

          4  Franchises to order.  A couple of quick comments.

          5                 First of all, I apologize to

          6  everybody in the room.  This is by far the latest

          7  this Committee has ever started. We are in effect an

          8  hour and ten minutes late.

          9                 Hopefully the situation will be

         10  addressed with the next Speaker, whoever that person

         11  is, because I think it's embarrassing that,

         12  especially a Land Use Committee, which is one of the

         13  most important Committees in the entire City

         14  Council, cannot meet on time.  And especially since

         15  we need quorum, we cannot start until we have

         16  quorum, whereas some of the other committees can

         17  just start if the Chair is there.

         18                 The other quick comment I want to

         19  make is, this may be the last meeting I Chair as

         20  Committee Chair of this Committee, and I want to

         21  thank the Land Use staff for all the help that

         22  they've given me over the past four years.  And I

         23  also want to thank City Planning, because it has

         24  been a wonderful relationship, and I think we've

         25  gotten a lot accomplished in the past four years,
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          2  and hopefully, we can continue that, and do even

          3  more.

          4                 I'm going to be skipping around the

          5  agenda a little bit, because I know people never

          6  anticipated being here at this time.  And I know

          7  everybody has other appointments.  So let's start

          8  first with Land Use No. 571, C020651ZMM, application

          9  by WMC Associates, LLC, for an amendment of the

         10  Zoning Map, changing from an R7-2 District to a C8-4

         11  District, property bounded by East 107th Street, and

         12  other locations.

         13                 MR. ANGELINO: Good morning, Council

         14  Members.  My name is Frank Angelino with the firm of

         15  Decampo, Diamond, and Ash. And I represent WMC

         16  Associates, which is the property in question.

         17                 When the Chair mentioned that the

         18  next speaker would address the quorum issue, I at

         19  first thought that it would be the next speaker, but

         20  then I realized it's the next speaker.

         21                 Whatever the Council does is fine

         22  with me.

         23                 Simply put, what this is all about is

         24  a Zoning Map change.  The WMC Associates owns a

         25  complex of three buildings, which are commercial
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          2  buildings at East 106th Street and 107th Street and

          3  Park Avenue on the east side of the street.  They

          4  are commercially zoned for 100 feet, but the

          5  buildings extend on 107th Street, 130 feet

          6  additional into an R District.  And on 106th Street,

          7  80 feet into an R District.  Which means that this

          8  complex, which has been around since the 1920s, a

          9  twelve- story building, two- story building, and a

         10  four- story building.  And which houses television

         11  studios, which is the oldest and the largest private

         12  television studios in New York City.  And

         13  historically, has shown everything from the original

         14  Howdy Doody Show in the early television, to

         15  segments of Law and Order, in the last several

         16  months, former President Clinton has been on the

         17  Meredith Theara (phonetic) Show, Naomi Judd is

         18  filming her series there.  It's been the long time

         19  home of Black Entertainment Television, which has

         20  since moved.  But it's very thriving studios.

         21                 And the building itself is an

         22  economic engine.  It employs between 500 and 1,000

         23  people.  New York City Police Department has their

         24  Narcotics Task Force there.  There's the Young

         25  Women's Leadership School, which has gotten a great
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          2  deal of laudatory attention for its efforts, and

          3  almost all of its graduates not only go to college,

          4  but get scholarships to go to college.  So there's a

          5  lot of good activities in the building.

          6                 The purpose of this is to allow for

          7  expansion, organic expansion of the television

          8  studios and perhaps, the Young Women's Leadership

          9  School within the building.  The immediate problem

         10  arose when they tried to fill in a two- story high

         11  space and found out that they were in a residential

         12  district, and couldn't do it.  Couldn't add as of

         13  right floor area.  So, it was decided to pursue a

         14  Zoning Map change that would only cover our site.

         15  And that would be to extend the C District just to

         16  cover Metropolis Studio sites.

         17                 And it's been well received as we

         18  have gone through the Land Use process, and here we

         19  are today.  I could go on, but I know that you have

         20  a long calendar, and I'm here to answer any

         21  questions, or make any comments.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If I may, this

         23  application lies within Council Member Phil Reed's

         24  district.  He is in favor of the project, and the

         25  Community Board and the President both approved. Are
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          2  there any questions from Committee Members or

          3  Council Members that are also with us?

          4                 If not, thank you.

          5                 MR. ANGELINO: Thank you for your

          6  time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see no one

          8  signed up to speak on this item, so I will close the

          9  public hearing on this matter.

         10                 Skipping around again, let us go to

         11  Intro. 750- A, 20065112LLY, which is a Local Law to

         12  amend the New York City Charter in relation to

         13  authorizing the Department of Transportation to

         14  extend the date of the franchise for the operation

         15  and maintenance of bus stop shelters.

         16                 MS. HORSCH: Good morning, Chairman

         17  Avella and Members of the Zoning and Franchises

         18  Subcommittee.  My name is Andra Horsch, and I am the

         19  Director of Intergovernmental Affairs at the New

         20  York City Department of Transportation.  Thank you

         21  for the opportunity to be here today to discuss the

         22  Administration's support for Intro. 750- A, which

         23  will amend the City Charter by authorizing DOT, with

         24  the approval of the Franchise and Concession Review

         25  Committee, to extend the expiration date of the
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          2  franchise to operate and maintain bus shelters.

          3                 As part of a comprehensive

          4  streetscape initiative to improve the design and

          5  maintenance of street furniture, the City Council,

          6  at the Mayor's request, authorized DOT to grant non

          7  exclusive franchises for installing, operating, and

          8  maintaining bus stop shelters, self- cleaning

          9  automatic public toilets, newsstand structures, and

         10  additional public service structures, and displaying

         11  advertising on them.  This franchise will assure a

         12  coordinated design scheme and make maintenance of

         13  the structures more cost effective.  The advertising

         14  on them will generate revenue to cover the costs

         15  associated with the structures, provide an incentive

         16  to the franchisee to properly maintain and repair

         17  the structures, and yield financial benefits for the

         18  City.

         19                 Pursuant to the Council's

         20  authorization, DOT issued a request for proposals on

         21  March 26, 2004.  The Department is diligently

         22  proceeding with the solicitation, and is hopeful

         23  that a franchise will be awarded in 2006.

         24                 Local Law 3 of 2005 authorized DOT to

         25  extend the date of the existing bus stop shelter
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          2  franchise until December 31st of this year.  In

          3  order to ensure a smooth transition from the

          4  existing bus stop shelter franchise to a new street

          5  furniture franchise with no interruption in service

          6  or revenue to the City, an additional extension is

          7  needed.

          8                 Intro. 750- A will accomplish this by

          9  allowing and extension of the existing franchise for

         10  an additional year.

         11                 Thank you for the opportunity to be

         12  here today.  I would be happy to answer your

         13  questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions?

         15                 Just to reiterate, this is basically

         16  just an administrative matter, extending the

         17  franchise from December 31, 2005 to December 31,

         18  2006, because DOT has not completed the final

         19  negotiations on the street furniture with the

         20  franchisee.

         21                 Council Member Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can you just go

         23  over, please, the status of the negotiations?  What

         24  the timing is for the new agreement?  Where you are

         25  now?
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          2                 MS. HORSCH: Sure.  DOT announced the

          3  selection of a vendor on September 21st.  And we've

          4  begun discussions with them. The timetable for

          5  getting the structures, the new structures on the

          6  street, really depends on several factors.  Namely,

          7  getting the contract in place, FCRC approval, and

          8  our Commission Design Review. If all goes well, we

          9  hope to have the contract before the FCRC this

         10  Winter, and formal design review starting

         11  immediately after that So, under the best case

         12  scenario, we hope to see the new structures on the

         13  streets by next Fall.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So we selected

         15  the vendor in September, what's holding it up?  On

         16  the contract to this point. There must be something.

         17                 MS. HORSCH: No, it's just the normal

         18  process of putting a contract in place.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So we don't

         20  expect to have another extension after March?

         21                 MS. HORSCH: We are hoping.  We are

         22  crossing our fingers.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         25  questions?
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          2                 Thank you.  If there's no one signed

          3  up to speak on this item, I'll close the public

          4  hearing on it.

          5                 And now move to City Planning.  We

          6  have a number of items that City Planning will make

          7  a presentation on.  I'll announce all of the items,

          8  and we'll take a public hearing aspect of all of

          9  them at the end in respective order.

         10                 First one is Land Use No. 594,

         11  C060055ZMQ, another one of our favorite rezoning,

         12  this one to occur in my district in the community of

         13  Whitestone.

         14                 Then we have what we've been

         15  referring to as a "FUCA", follow up corrective

         16  action, for the Hudson Yards rezoning. Preconsidered

         17  N060046(A)ZRM.

         18                 Then we have an application to amend

         19  a commercial areas on Staten Island, ULURP actions

         20  060061, 62, and 63, C060061ZMR, in Council Member

         21  McMahon's district.

         22                 CO60062ZMR in Council Member Oddo's

         23  district.

         24                 C060063ZMR in Council Member Lanza's

         25  district.
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          2                 And then we have a text amendment to

          3  the Lower Density Growth Management area,

          4  Preconsidered N060066ZRR,

          5                 Now I'd like to call City Planning up

          6  to make the presentation.  I believe they're going

          7  to start with the City Planning.  Oh, you want to

          8  go?  I don't care who goes first.

          9                 MR. GARCIA-DURAN: Good morning

         10  Councilmen.  I am Len Garcia- Duran, Director of

         11  Staten Island City Planning Office.  Just to start,

         12  we've actually have a Powerpoint presentation and

         13  we've provided to task force members, Community

         14  Boards in Staten Island, City Planning Commission,

         15  and we actually have provided you with hard copies

         16  of the Powerpoint presentation.  You should have

         17  with you.

         18                 I'll ask the Chair, since we are

         19  starting late, that we can either do a very brief

         20  summary, and not go through the entire Powerpoint,

         21  if you don't wish to do so, or we can actually walk

         22  you through the entire piece.

         23                 It's the same piece, I can just give

         24  you a brief summary of what's in it, to not walk

         25  through the entire piece.
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          2                 Okay.  That's fine.

          3                 As you may recall, the Mayor

          4  appointed the Staten Island Task Force, back in

          5  2003.  It includes that Staten Island Borough

          6  President, all three Staten Island Council Members,

          7  includes representatives of civic groups, and

          8  industrial groups on Staten Island.

          9                 We actually made a number of

         10  recommendations for residential developments

         11  throughout the entire borough, which were adopted by

         12  the City Council in August, 2004.  And one of the

         13  recommendations I gave at that time also was that we

         14  needed to be looking at the commercial districts

         15  throughout Staten Island.

         16                 As the task force noted, on Staten

         17  Island, due to the demand for residential

         18  construction, in the commercial areas, residential

         19  commercial developments.  In fact, what we noted is

         20  that, although in New York City, 16 percent of all

         21  the zoning laws allow commercial development, on

         22  Staten Island, that number is only five percent of

         23  all zoning laws allow commercial.  So it was a

         24  direct concern that if you had inappropriate

         25  residential development in these commercial areas,
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          2  we'd be challenged to try and bring more commercial

          3  to the Islanders, where it's still needed.

          4                 As you may recall, earlier this year,

          5  we actually brought an application to City Council

          6  which was adopted.  It was the first part of our

          7  review of commercial areas, where we actually

          8  proposed to eliminate 21 commercial areas throughout

          9  Staten Island, where already, residential

         10  developments had been built.  And we did not feel it

         11  would be appropriate to have commercial rules on

         12  these residential projects already in place.

         13                 The second piece was to actually come

         14  up with the proposed text amendments that would

         15  apply to all commercial areas across Staten Island.

         16  And James will walk you through that in a minute.

         17  Due to these text amendments, it also prompted us to

         18  do three rezonings of local retail areas.  We wanted

         19  to ensure that the zoning matched the existing built

         20  context of those neighborhoods.  We're going to walk

         21  you through images of those three neighborhoods

         22  also.

         23                 At the request of property owners in

         24  those areas, we've actually met with them, and

         25  talked to them, and explained what the rules are,

                                                            15

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  and what the rezoning was all about.  And also

          3  introduced the idea that we're actually going to be

          4  continuing our review of the commercial areas in

          5  Staten Island with a proposed town center study,

          6  which we're actually working with a task force and

          7  the commercial property owners as we move forward

          8  into the new year.

          9                 So with that, let me just throw it to

         10  James, to walk you through the PowerPoint.

         11                 MR. MIRAGLIA: Thank you.  There are

         12  two parts, of course, to this proposal.  One is the

         13  text amendment, and the other are the three

         14  rezonings.  So I will quickly go through the

         15  introduction, which Len just has basically said.  So

         16  we can start with the proposed text changes.

         17                 These text changes apply to all C1,

         18  C2, C4 Districts.  The first thing is that we're

         19  going to expand the Lower Density Growth Management

         20  Area to include C1, C2, and C4 Districts on Staten

         21  Island.  Before, they were not included.

         22                 This is a map, briefly showing you

         23  where the commercial districts are on Staten Island.

         24    As you can see, there's very few, especially in

         25  the South Shore.
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          2                 Secondly, the text amendment will

          3  require that no residential- only development would

          4  be allowed in C1, C2, and C4 Districts.  This is the

          5  most significant part of the text amendment.

          6                 Basically, the only way you can do

          7  residential in these districts is to do the

          8  residential above either a community facility, or

          9  commercial use on the first floor.  Of course, you

         10  could always do only commercial, or all community

         11  facility, but the all- residential development would

         12  not be an option in the C1, C2 and C4 Districts.

         13                 Going along with that in all three of

         14  those districts, your ground floor use would have to

         15  be within two feet of a curb level.  That would

         16  prevent your commercial use from being put into a

         17  cellar.  The proposal would require the

         18  nonresidential uses, the commercial uses, et cetera,

         19  to have a minimum depth of 30 feet, so you couldn't

         20  make a false commercial store front.

         21                 And in order to encourage continuous

         22  retail, the proposal would require that lobbies and

         23  entrances not comprise more than 25 percent of the

         24  width of the building.  Again, as to ensure real

         25  commercial gets built in these kind of communities.
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          2                 We would require a five- foot

          3  landscape buffer between residential buildings and

          4  nonresidential buildings within C1, C2, and C4- 1

          5  Districts.  This would apply to side streets, but

          6  not the commercial block fronts.  So here we have a

          7  residential building here, this is a real situation.

          8    A commercial building was built within basically,

          9  six inches of this building.  In the future, this

         10  would require a five- foot landscape buffer between

         11  the two to separate them out.  This is the side

         12  street, this would be the side street.  But on the

         13  commercial block front, facing the major commercial

         14  strip, this requirement would not be required,

         15  because we felt that it would incumber future

         16  commercial use on the main commercial drags.

         17                 Also, within C1, C2, and C4

         18  Districts, street trees would be required, one per

         19  25 foot of street frontage.  This is basically, just

         20  continuing the street planting requirements of the

         21  Lower Density Growth Management Areas, which we

         22  passed last year.

         23                 Now there are certain rules which

         24  only apply to C4- 1 Districts.  We'll go through

         25  them.  Here's your Staten Island C4- 1 Districts.

                                                            18

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Not that many.   Staten Island Mall, down in New

          3  Dorp, and up here, near Castleton.

          4                 Your current rule in a C4- 1 is a

          5  commercial FAR 1, with a residential equivalent of

          6  R5, with high parking requirements.  This has

          7  allowed a very large residential developments, like

          8  this townhouse community to be inserted right in the

          9  middle of a huge regional mall, basically.  We felt

         10  that that is not appropriate at all.

         11                 So the rule change would say, that on

         12  residential uses, on City blocks of at least four

         13  acres, within C4- 1 Districts, a residential use

         14  would not be allowed as of right, regardless of lot

         15  size.  This is the Staten Island Mall.  It's a C4- 1

         16  District, much bigger than four acres.  So the idea

         17  is here, no one would be able to be allowed to build

         18  a residential development in here of any type.  If

         19  they did propose that, they would have to go before

         20  the City Planning Commission for a special permit,

         21  which would be subject to City Council review as

         22  well.

         23                 Again, this just demonstrates that.

         24  This is down in New Dorp.  These are very large

         25  four- acre or greater C4- 1 blocks. These are
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          2  individual lots in here.  And anything being

          3  proposed residential in here, in these large C4- 1

          4  blocks would require that City Planning special

          5  permit.

          6                 On C4- 1 Districts, where you're not

          7  in the large four- acre or greater blocks, a

          8  different set of rules would apply. If your lots,

          9  individual lots are greater than 20,000 square feet,

         10  you would need that special permit that I mentioned.

         11    But on the lots smaller than 20,000 square feet,

         12  it would revert back to the earlier rules I just

         13  stated, which is to say that the residential would

         14  have to be above a commercial use, or community

         15  facility use.

         16                 So over in Great Kills, this is your

         17  commercial district here.  These blue lots are the

         18  ones that are bigger than 20,000.  Within those, you

         19  would need a special permit.  But on the smaller

         20  ones, you can just build a residential as of right.

         21  But again, it would have to be above the community

         22  facility or commercial building, use.

         23                 A different set of rules are now

         24  being proposed for the C4- 2 Districts.  The C4- 2

         25  Districts are historic commercial centers on Staten

                                                            20

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Island, like St. George, and New Dorp, Port

          3  Richmond, and other historic town centers, so to

          4  speak.  Existing rule, is a commercial FAR 3.4, with

          5  a residential equivalency of R6.  Some of the

          6  problems we've seen have been, like the injection of

          7  these kinds of things in the commercial street wall,

          8  where you just have a very large asphalt parking

          9  lots, building completely set back, continuous curb

         10  cut.  It creates all kinds of conflicts between

         11  pedestrians and automobiles in a conventional town

         12  center. Traditional town center.

         13                 The proposal would require the

         14  Quality Housing Rules of Development.  That's an

         15  existing set of rules, that among other things,

         16  require a continuous street wall, would prohibit

         17  parking between the street and the building, so you

         18  couldn't set the building back with a big parking

         19  lot in front of it.  And it also limits building

         20  heights under different circumstances.

         21                 It would also require new rules for

         22  the landscape buffer that I mentioned.  It would

         23  require the street trees.  And it would prohibit

         24  ground- floor residential uses.  So again, in these

         25  C4- 2 Districts, you'd have to build residential
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          2  above either a commercial use or community facility

          3  on the first floor.

          4                 Because of these, based upon proposed

          5  text amendments, the following commercial areas

          6  would require rezonings to conform to the new rules.

          7    There's three of them, as Len mentioned.  One in

          8  CD1, one in CD2, and one in CD3.  Castleton Avenue

          9  is the first one.  It is currently zoned C4- 2.

         10  This is the rezoning area where that light blue line

         11  is.  It's all C402 in there now.  It's adjacent to

         12  an existing R3- 2/C2- 2 District, which goes down

         13  Castleton Avenue.  And basically, we're just going

         14  to change everything within this blue line to an R3-

         15  2/C2- 2, so it will match the existing zoning to the

         16  east of it.

         17                 The red represents commercial uses.

         18  Grey is vacant, and the other ones are mixed- use

         19  buildings.

         20                 So the R3- 2/C2- 2 would limit

         21  construction here to a 1.2 FAR for commercial, and

         22  it would limit the building heights for residential

         23  buildings to Lower Density Growth Management rules.

         24  So it will be much more in context with all the

         25  single and two- family housing that's around it.
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          2  The C4- 2 would allow a much, much, much taller

          3  building.  You could put a five- story building

          4  here.

          5                 And I'll just give you a quick look

          6  at what this neighborhood looks like.  You could see

          7  that it's one and two- story commercial down the

          8  strip.  One- story commercial.  One- story

          9  commercial.  One- story commercial.  One- story

         10  commercial.

         11                 So again, the C4- 2 would have

         12  allowed a much, much bigger building there.  We

         13  don't feel it would be in the context.

         14                 Over on New Dorp Lane, it's the same

         15  situation. Within this blue line is a C4- 2, which

         16  would allow up to a 55- foot tall building here.

         17  And it's surrounded by one and two- family R3X

         18  houses.  And we feel that a five- story building

         19  here would be completely out of context.

         20                 So again, the proposal is to convert

         21  this to an R3 2/C2- 2, which would allow them to do

         22  one or two- story commercial uses, with residential

         23  above.  And it would be much more in context to the

         24  as- built form here.  It's already 86 percent

         25  conforming to an R3- 2/C2- 2.  So it's a matter of
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          2  just making the zoning match the as- built

          3  character.

          4                 This is the character of New Dorp

          5  Lane.  Just briefly, to show you, it's one- story

          6  commercial.  An occasional two- story.

          7                 The last one is at Arthur Kill Road

          8  at Richmond Avenue.  This is a large regional mall,

          9  and it has a C4- 2 on it, and a C2- 2 and a C2- 1.

         10  The new C4- 2 rules would not really be appropriate

         11  here, because it's for a town centers.  So the

         12  proposal is to rezone this to a C4- 1 in the entire

         13  area.

         14            This again, is the entire zoning area, and

         15  the whole thing is to go to a C4- 1, which would

         16  much closely match this kind of regional shopping

         17  center.

         18                 Just to quickly show you what C4

         19  development would allow on New Dorp Lane and

         20  Castleton.  It's basically four to five story

         21  buildings with commercial underneath.  Like this.

         22  And this. And this.  And this.  Which is appropriate

         23  in St. George, but we don't feel it will be

         24  appropriate in a one or two- story commercial

         25  character neighborhood like Castleton or New Dorp.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. GARCIA-DURAN: I would just like

          4  to add that -- and say thank you to Council Members

          5  Oddo, McMahon, and Lanza and their staff members,

          6  Rob, Mike, and Allen, who spent a lot of time,

          7  hours, and energy discussing, debating these rules

          8  with us and the rest of the task force.  And I

          9  appreciate their efforts to work with us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: One quick comment

         11  before I call on the Staten Island delegation that

         12  is here.  I obviously want to complement City

         13  Planning and the Staten Island delegation for once

         14  again, coming up with a very good regulations to

         15  stop over development and inappropriate construction

         16  on Staten Island.  The one comment I made when you

         17  gave me the briefing, and I make it for the record

         18  again, is, a lot of the changes that you're

         19  suggesting apply not only in Staten Island, but in

         20  other areas of the City. And I think it's very

         21  important that you take this back and maybe make

         22  some of these changes Citywide.  Especially as it

         23  relates to the buffer zone between the commercial

         24  and the residential district on the side streets.  I

         25  think that's very important for other areas in the
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          2  City as well.

          3                 Who wants to go first?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: They said

          5  that since I'm the youngest and most handsome, I can

          6  go first, and I appreciate their deference on that.

          7  I just -- he said, what are you hard of hearing?  --

          8    I just want to say real briefly, and sort of to

          9  dove tail what Chairman Avella said, that I guess it

         10  was in May of 2003 that a shot was fired that was

         11  ultimately heard around the world, when Council

         12  Member Oddo sent a letter to the Mayor, and got his

         13  attention on something that we've been clamoring for

         14  for a long time.  Which was, that we had to get a

         15  handle on the zoning rules, because failure to do so

         16  would lead to the destruction of the neighborhoods,

         17  not only in Staten Island, but obviously, throughout

         18  the City of New York.  And I just want to thank --

         19  we're not always happy, we think it should move more

         20  quickly, and we've had a lot of discussion about

         21  that.  We have a lot of work left to do, but this is

         22  a moment where we have to sit back and say thank you

         23  for Len Garcia- Duran and James Miraglia, and

         24  everybody who works in the Staten Island office of

         25  City Planning, our staff members, who you've
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          2  mentioned, Mike, Alex, and Rob.  And each other,

          3  that we can all work together.  And the Land Use

          4  staff here at the City Council, led by Gail

          5  Benjamin, and Melinda Katz and Tony Avella, because

          6  these are things that had to be done.

          7                 And I just want to tell you a quick

          8  story.  This picture you see with the house.  This

          9  is Forest Avenue and Board Avenue.  And what you'll

         10  see here is there's a house that existed there for

         11  over a hundred years.  Can we get that picture back

         12  up there?  And in that house lives Mrs. Donohue

         13  (phonetic).  And Mrs. Donohue is probably about 75

         14  now, but looks much younger.  And for 50 years, she

         15  taught at Cottonville High School, science, was one

         16  of the most loved teachers on Staten Island.  And

         17  all she wanted to do was sort of retire to her home,

         18  and enjoy the golden years of her life.  And one

         19  year into retirement, there was word that this

         20  project was going to occur.  And we set out, we met

         21  with City Planning, the Buildings Department, anyone

         22  who would listen, and asked them not to let this

         23  happen.  We asked the builder not to build it this

         24  way.  And it doesn't even show it here, but I think

         25  James said it, you cannot walk between that building
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          2  and the woman's house.  So this whole side of her

          3  side door is now inaccessible.  And it doesn't show

          4  here either, but on the top of the roof, on the back

          5  of the air conditioner.  So really, now she really

          6  has to shut off that side of her house.  And this

          7  should not have happened.  Nobody listened.  It's

          8  too late to fix what happened to her.  But I'm happy

          9  that we're here now, saying with one voice, that as

         10  we go forward, we're writing better rules for the

         11  future of Staten Island, and hopefully for the City

         12  of New York.

         13                 So I just want to thank everybody,

         14  and just remind you guys that we have a lot of work

         15  left to do.  And thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.  To

         17  you, Mr. Chairman, I certainly hope this isn't your

         18  last hearing as Chairman of this Subcommittee.

         19  Unless you have bigger and better things to do

         20  within the Council.  But I think that you've done a

         21  great job chairing this Committee, doing, I think,

         22  some of the most important work in the City.  So

         23  unless you have greater things within the Council, I

         24  hope you're back here next year, continuing the good

         25  work that you've done.  And even the staff is much
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          2  appreciated.

          3                 I want to follow up on a couple of

          4  things that Councilman McMahon said.  And that's to

          5  say that each time we do some of these new rule

          6  changes and zoning changes, it's very bitter sweet,

          7  because we see what we can do and what we could have

          8  avoided.  And we think of what Staten Island could

          9  have been.

         10                 In this particular instance, it's

         11  particularly more bitter than sweet, in that there

         12  was one picture, if you can go to it, that really

         13  doesn't capture just how disastrous it was, but we

         14  had this huge bowling alley that was ripped down and

         15  we have this rows and rows of houses being build.

         16  And what's particularly disturbing about this

         17  instance is that at the end of phase one of the task

         18  force, I, and my colleagues in the Council,

         19  specifically pointed out that as we tighten the

         20  rules in the residential, the tension was to go to

         21  the commercial.  And it really, this instance, on

         22  the Bowling on the Green, was really avoidable.  And

         23  we missed that opportunity.  And that's why the

         24  Council Members often come across as inpatient and

         25  gruff, because we know that there are folks on the
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          2  other side who are just willing and waiting for the

          3  opportunity to attack that soft underbelly.

          4                 The value of residential property has

          5  exceeded the value of commercial property.  And how

          6  that manifests itself on Staten Island, is that you

          7  have a bowling alley that gets ripped down and

          8  houses go up.  I guess it manifests itself in

          9  Manhattan when you have something like the Plaza

         10  ceased to exist solely as a hotel, and they figure

         11  they have to have a residential component on it.

         12                 The progression that we see on Staten

         13  Island is attack vacant land when the vacant land

         14  was exhausted.  Go to the tear- downs when we put

         15  rules in place to limit the profitability of tear-

         16  downs.  They've moved into the next frontier, which

         17  is the commercial zones.  We're tightening that.  I

         18  guess that will force them to try to become more

         19  aggressive and move in the manufacturing zones.

         20                 I want to thank my colleagues.  I

         21  want to thank the good folks at City Planning for

         22  this work.  It comes too late for Bowling on the

         23  Green, but it will protect New York Lane and the

         24  other portions of the Island outside of my district,

         25  and I'm grateful for that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you

          3  Chairman Avella.  I don't know if you can notice,

          4  but my colleagues, Council Member McMahon and Oddo,

          5  and I can hardly contain our joy today.  This really

          6  is an important day for all of us.  And Chairman

          7  Avella is right.  I think what we've done here needs

          8  to be implemented elsewhere in other communities

          9  across the City, who are going through the same

         10  angst that we have gone through on Staten Island for

         11  so long.

         12                 This really is, I think, a signal

         13  that we are in the final stretch of a process that

         14  has done more to improve the quality of life and

         15  it's more common sense and planning to neighborhoods

         16  all across Staten Island than has been done in the

         17  last 50 years.  And perhaps ever, really.

         18  Especially on Staten Island.  And there are a lot of

         19  people that worked long and hard, beginning with

         20  you, Len, and you, James.  And all the people in the

         21  Staten Island office.  And Amanda Burden and our

         22  staffs, and on this staff.

         23                 And this really is, I think, what

         24  good government is all about.  There was a problem,

         25  and we all came together and we addressed that
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          2  problem.  And I think the slide show that you just

          3  showed here today, I think demonstrates the

          4  comprehensive and broad scope of the initiatives

          5  which are being put in place to protect our

          6  communities.  And you know, as I look through these

          7  pages, and we've all worked together on these

          8  initiatives, and we've all made contributions.

          9  We've all worked together.

         10                 I can't help but wonder why this

         11  wasn't done in the past.  And I don't want to look

         12  back.  I want to look forward.  But as you look

         13  across the screen at each one of these initiatives,

         14  I think they cry out with common sense.  And you

         15  have to wonder  -- and you look at them, you say

         16  sometimes, you mean that wasn't the way it was?

         17                 We need to change the rules to have

         18  buffer strips, and we need to change the rules to

         19  make sure that residential development complies with

         20  the rules that residential development needs to

         21  comply with outside of commercial zones.  That's not

         22  the way it is.  Well, it wasn't.  Because the work

         23  of the people wasn't done before now, and it is.

         24                 I just want to make one last point.

         25  I don't believe there is anyone here in opposition
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          2  to these changes.  They seem to hide in the shadows,

          3  and make their scurrilous strikes.  But I have to

          4  tell you, I was never in doubt that we would get

          5  this done.  But I was especially --  when Allen

          6  Copelli, and the patrons who support him, like Randy

          7  Lee and others, when I saw them sort of start to

          8  take the same type of scurrilous, divisive,

          9  impersonal attacks on this process, as opposed to

         10  talking on the merits, because of course, on the

         11  merits, they lose.  I knew, I knew then, that their

         12  foolhardy and ridicules attacks on the process has

         13  only helped to solidify the support that we have

         14  enjoyed.  Not only in the community, but here in the

         15  City Council.  And that's why my last remark is to

         16  really thank you, Councilman Avella.  You,

         17  Councilwoman Katz.  And all my colleagues in the

         18  City Council who have really rallied around us, and

         19  shown their support, and your support to make this

         20  happen.  We really have done a good thing here to

         21  protect the people of Staten Island.  To make sure

         22  that our communities are such that the quality of

         23  life is not devalued because of our inactions.  So

         24  once again, thank you all.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other
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          2  comments, questions, from Council Members?

          3                 Okay, we'll move on to the next item.

          4  Which one are you going to take next?

          5                 We do Whitestone's, John?  Now that

          6  we've finished with Staten Island, can I have one in

          7  in Queens?

          8                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

          9  Avella.  It's still morning.  I just had to check.

         10  Land Use Chair Katz, City Council Members, ladies

         11  and gentlemen.  My name is John Young, and I'm the

         12  Director of the Queens Office of the Department of

         13  City Planning. On behalf of City Planning Director

         14  Amanda Burden, I'm very pleased to be here this

         15  morning to introduce the Department's proposal to

         16  comprehensively update zoning designations in the

         17  greater Whitestone community in Northern Queens.

         18                 I'm joined by Seth Myers, who is the

         19  Project Manager for the rezoning proposal, and he

         20  will shortly present details of it to you.  But

         21  while we're in a reflective mode, I just would like

         22  to not that this rezoning is the 16th neighborhood

         23  in Queens, for which we are updating zoning.

         24  Through this presentation, and working with the Land

         25  Use Committee, and the Zoning and Franchises
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          2  Subcommittee, this is a quite unprecedented level of

          3  activity that we've been doing in Queens.  And

          4  again, working with you is the only way we could

          5  have accomplished so much in the last four years.  So

          6  for the Whitestone rezoning proposal, the Department

          7  has developed yet again, a carefully delineated

          8  rezoning strategy to address the particular concerns

          9  of residents regarding the area's development

         10  trends.  As we will explain, the proposal seeks to

         11  curb inappropriate development that demolishes

         12  existing houses, and diminishes the community's

         13  built fabric.  But still ensure that homeowners have

         14  flexibility to adapt their property to meet the

         15  needs of their families.

         16                 The rezoning proposal will rezone 310

         17  blocks, in portions of Whitestone, Beachhurst, and

         18  Robinwood.  These Northern Queens neighborhoods are

         19  exemplified by appealing residential streets, with a

         20  mix of one- and two- family houses, generally

         21  constructed from the late 19th century to the mid

         22  20th century. The Whitestone area also has several

         23  garden apartment complexes, an active downtown hub,

         24  and striking views of the East River along its

         25  northern edge.
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          2                 Like many communities throughout

          3  Queens in the City, Whitestone is experiencing a

          4  housing construction boom.  While this new

          5  development is generally desirable, recent trends in

          6  Whitestone have resulted in new housing that is

          7  increasingly inconsistent with the area's

          8  established patterns of development.  In some

          9  instances, single- family detached houses are

         10  replaced by attached, or semi detached developments,

         11  or by detached single- family houses considerably

         12  larger than neighboring houses.

         13                 The Department's Whitestone rezoning

         14  proposal seeks to protect the qualities and

         15  characteristics that make the area so desirable.

         16  Its main objectives are to reinforce established

         17  building patterns, prevent the subdivision of larger

         18  building lots in very low- density areas, and ensure

         19  that new development more closely matches the scale

         20  of existing homes.  In order to achieve the first

         21  objective, the rezoning proposal will replace zoning

         22  that generally dates to 1961, with new, lower-

         23  density or contextual districts.  These new zoning

         24  districts and their boundaries, have been carefully

         25  selected to better reflect the existing density and
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          2  build character of various parts of Whitestone.

          3                 In certain very low density areas,

          4  the current zoning does not reflect the predominance

          5  of larger lot sizes, and as a result of this

          6  mismatch, one existing home can be replaced by two

          7  large homes on lots half the size as the original.

          8  To preserve the larger yards and the unique

          9  character of these areas, the Department has

         10  proposed zoning that increases minimum lot sizes,

         11  and would limit subdivision of property.

         12                 To ensure that new development more

         13  closely matches the scale of existing homes, the

         14  Department is proposing to use the recently created

         15  R2- A zoning district on more than 200 blocks in the

         16  area.  The R2- a designation removes many of the

         17  floor area exemptions and pliable height

         18  regulations, to curb so- called "McMansions".  The

         19  R2- A establishes clear rules to govern the height,

         20  size, and lot coverage of homes, while providing a

         21  reasonable framework to construct new homes that

         22  will blend into established streetscapes, or make

         23  improvements or extensions onto existing houses.

         24                 We are grateful to have been able to

         25  work with the areas, engaging in committed civic
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          2  groups and residents in creating and refining this

          3  proposal.  The rezoning plan has again benefitted

          4  greatly from the input and leadership of the area's

          5  Council Member, Council Member Avella, as well as

          6  from Urban Planning Consultant, Paul Graziano.

          7                 The proposal has received approving

          8  recommendations from Community Board Seven and

          9  Queens Borough President Helen Marshall.  In her

         10  recommendation for approval, the Borough President

         11  asked City Planning to review the boundaries between

         12  the R1- 2 and R2- A zones proposed for Beachhurst.

         13  And the Department has committed to do so as a

         14  follow up action, as part of yet another rezoning

         15  study underway for the portion of Community Board

         16  Seven just to the south.

         17                 We hope you too will support the

         18  rezoning proposal that seeks to protect and enhance

         19  the cherished neighborhood quality of Whitestone.

         20                 Seth Myers will now present the

         21  rezoning proposal to you and will answer any

         22  questions you may have.

         23                 MR. MYERS: Thank you John.  The

         24  Whitestone study area is generally bounded by the

         25  East River to the north, the Whitestone Bridge and
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          2  the Throgs Neck Bridge, the Whitestone Expressway to

          3  the west, the Clearview Expressway and Clearview

          4  Park to the east, and 25th Avenue to the south.

          5  This is a very low density neighborhood, as John

          6  mentioned.  Primarily one- and two family houses.

          7  It's bisected by the Cross Island Parkway, and this

          8  is generally the downtown area.

          9                 And the objective of our study was

         10  primarily residential areas, that's what we're

         11  really going to focus on here. North of the Cross

         12  Island Expressway, it's almost entirely single

         13  family houses in the R2 zone.  And it's primarily

         14  detached housing as well.  And south of the Parkway,

         15  it makes up one- and two families, in a variety of

         16  housing types, primarily detached, but also

         17  containing semi- detached, and some garden apartment

         18  complexes as well.

         19                 As John mentioned, there has been no

         20  update of the zoning since primarily since 1961, so

         21  we're looking to really match what the existing

         22  characteristics are with a new type of zoning

         23  treatment.

         24                 These photos are some examples of

         25  some of the problems that we saw that kind of match
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          2  our objectives.  The top row here is, this is a very

          3  typical house.  It's a small, single family detached

          4  home, that really shares a lot of attributes with

          5  its neighbors.  It has similar patterns in that

          6  block.

          7                 What the zoning allows in that area

          8  though, if you have a large enough lot, is that

          9  house could be replaced where a one- family was in a

         10  detached home, with two, two- family semi detached

         11  buildings.  So you really are not matching the

         12  typical build pattern or the typical residential

         13  density. As well as some other areas where you can

         14  see that new homes are considerably bulkier or

         15  larger, using some of the community facility

         16  regulations in higher density areas.

         17                 This is an example of two homes that

         18  are next to each other.  They're both on very large

         19  lots, which the current zoning does not reflect.  It

         20  has much lower requirements.  And in this case, the

         21  neighbor just to the west, was able to subdivide

         22  their lot.  Their home was replaced with two homes

         23  on lots half the size.  So, there used to be two

         24  homes that looked just like this. And then now,

         25  they're replaced with two much larger homes on much
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          2  smaller lots.

          3                 And this is an example of the scale

          4  of a lot of the area's -- where there are single-

          5  family detached homes and there's a much more

          6  predominant scale when houses were much closer to

          7  about 2,000 square feet on average.  And what we're

          8  finding is that using a lot of the loop holes and

          9  flexibility in the existing R- 2 zoning, people are

         10  putting in new houses that are considerably out of

         11  scale with the surrounding hones.  So that's what we

         12  hope to address in our rezoning.

         13                 To solve these problems of

         14  appropriate business types and residential density,

         15  we used a variety of new contextual zones, or

         16  recently created contextual zones, replacing areas

         17  that are zoned where multiple- family buildings

         18  could come in, or small apartment buildings even.

         19  We matched the detached character primarily one- and

         20  two- family type with the R3- X designation over

         21  here.  In some of the areas where there's a mix of

         22  one- and two family houses that are detached, we

         23  applied the R3- A.  And in other areas, we did lower

         24  replacing where multiple families could come in,

         25  limiting it to only one and two families.
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          2                 In other areas, you'll see the yellow

          3  here.  In Beachhurst.  And over here by Francis

          4  Lewis Park, we mapped a zone, the R1- 2, which has

          5  larger lot requirements.  And the goal of that was

          6  to prevent lot subdivision.

          7                 And finally, where you see the light

          8  tan, is where we put R2-A.  And that's the new

          9  contextual district that was recently created to

         10  limit the size and lot coverage that new

         11  developments, new single- family detached homes can

         12  have, to make sure that they better match the scale

         13  and development patterns of the predominant housing

         14  characteristics.

         15                 While this application was moving

         16  through the City Planning Commission, there were two

         17  modifications that were made. This block over here,

         18  just south of Palace Cove Boulevard, was proposed to

         19  go to R1- 2.  People asked us to look at the fact

         20  that there was a mix of lot sizes and building types

         21  on that block.  And we are just going to leave it

         22  under its existing R- 2 zoning.  And that

         23  modification was made and there was a lot here along

         24  Clintonville Street, where our proposed zoning line

         25  was going to split the property owner's lot between
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          2  two zoning types.  And he asked us to move it so he

          3  could remain in his existing R3-1 zoning. And we

          4  made that modification.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, John

          6  and Seth.  First of all, I want to thank you and the

          7  entire staff of the Queens Office of City Planning

          8  for putting this together.

          9                 When this was first done as a study,

         10  it was the largest study being done in Queens.  The

         11  amount that we're rezoning is slightly smaller, but

         12  it was still a massive undertaking.   And you know,

         13  it's interesting, council Member Lanza mentioned

         14  some of the opposition that has come up in Staten

         15  Island, some of the ridiculous opposition.  As we

         16  rezone more neighborhoods in Queens, we are finding

         17  that the developers in Queens are getting much more

         18  organized, and much more devious in their

         19  opposition.  And that certainly was the situation in

         20  Whitestone where there was a lot of nonsense going

         21  on.  And we also find that there's an application

         22  going on in Douglaston and Littleneck as we speak,

         23  it hasn't been certified yet, where similar nonsense

         24  is going on, where misinformation is being spread by

         25  developers, and I hate to say, architects, as well.
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          2                 But I do want to thank City Planning

          3  for putting this together.  You did allude to the

          4  fact that we will be coming back in a follow up

          5  application, I believe it is North Flushing study,

          6  where we'd be taking a look at that section on the

          7  map that is, I guess it's yellow, where it's R1- 2.

          8  Basically, some of the residents in that area on the

          9  periphery of that zone have indicated that --  which

         10  was R2 prior to this, that they would much prefer to

         11  be R2- A instead of the R1- 2.  There may be several

         12  other issues that we may want to take a look at, and

         13  City Planning and I are, by the way, be going door

         14  to door in that neighborhood, just to make sure that

         15  we understand what the concerns of the residents

         16  are, at some point in the future.

         17                 But I thank you for putting this

         18  together.  It is being well received by the

         19  overwhelming majority of the residents in the area.

         20  And Civic Association.  And the Community Board.

         21  And I want to thank you.

         22                 Any questions from my colleagues?

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 We'll move on to the FUCA for Hudson

         25  yards.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The zoning that

          3  just keeps giving.  Hudson Yards.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: But we should

          5  mention that I think it's a testimony to City

          6  Planning and Amanda Burden, that they are so willing

          7  to keep coming back and make adjustments wherever

          8  necessary in these zoning applications.  This is

          9  something that is really, to my knowledge, even

         10  though I wasn't an elected Council Member, I've been

         11  in government for a while, has never happened with

         12  City Planning.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         14  add, to share that also, the City Planning -- I

         15  agree with most of everything you said, but  -- City

         16  Planning Commission, I think, deserves a lot of

         17  credit.  Because when we, last year, said that the

         18  Council and the Community Board had to be co-

         19  applicants in all follow up corrective action, they

         20  agreed to that.  And I don't know  -- I think that

         21  never happens, but I think it certainly infrequently

         22  happens that all three parties -- maybe never -- but

         23  infrequently that all three parties are co-

         24  applicants.  And they, along with our staff and the

         25  Community Board, and my staff, has really agonized
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          2  over every word of these follow up actions.  And I

          3  think that is a credit to all of us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It is rare to see

          5  co- applicants like that, and we are very

          6  appreciative of Christine Quinn and her partnership

          7  and her leadership on a number of these items, as

          8  well as Community Board Four.

          9                 MR. HAAS: My name is William Haas.

         10  I'm the Project Director of Hudson Yards at City

         11  Planning, and to my right is Lee Compton, from

         12  Community Board Four, who is a co- applicant.  I

         13  will briefly describe the FUCA text in front, and

         14  Lee has a number of words as well.

         15                 As has been mentioned, we are co-

         16  applicants with Council Member Quinn and Community

         17  Board Four.  And the genesis of this was back in

         18  January of this year, as we were going through the

         19  Hudson Yards Public Review process, a number of

         20  follow up items were identified, and subsequently,

         21  to those items, there were a number of

         22  clarifications and corrections that were also

         23  identified. So this text addresses those concerns.

         24                 An application, a joint application

         25  was filed to address these.  There was one item in
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          2  the original text that was the item of a number of

          3  comments at the public hearing, at the City Planning

          4  Commission.  That item was changes to the theater

          5  bonus along 42nd Street, and the Clinton Special

          6  District.  In response to those comments and

          7  concerns, the application was actually split in two.

          8    We have before us the items where there's a broad

          9  consensus to go forward with.  And the theater bonus

         10  text is still at the Planning Commission to undergo

         11  further consideration and review.  It's, what we

         12  have before us with application 060046(A), is the

         13  consensus items.

         14                 And these items do a number of

         15  things.  The first, behind me here, is a board of

         16  the Hudson Yards Special District area.  The two

         17  areas in light green and light blue are areas where

         18  we are extending the Special Hudson Yards

         19  Inclusionary Housing Program.  Those two areas were

         20  not  --  we were not able to extend that program to

         21  those two areas initially, so this application will

         22  extend that program to these two areas.

         23                 In addition, we have created an anti-

         24  harassment text which is intended to put in place

         25  procedures and provisions to protect tenants and to
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          2  protect from harassment from happening.  And if it

          3  does, impose a zoning remedies as well as the legal

          4  remedies that are in place.  And that text extends

          5  throughout the Hudson Yards and extends to a portion

          6  of the Garment Center as well, which is immediately

          7  to the east of the Hudson Yards district.  And we

          8  have also taken those improved procedures and

          9  applied them to the Clinton district to the north.

         10

         11                 In addition to the harassment, we

         12  have also rezoned what is D4.  We are providing text

         13  amendments to prevent the conversions of ground-

         14  floor residential to commercial.  Existing ground-

         15  floor residence to commercial, so as to protect

         16  tenants in that area.

         17                 Additionally, along the subarea of

         18  the Farley corridor, the Bs, there is some tower

         19  coverage controls that are being modified to make

         20  residential development more feasible.

         21                 And in addition, there are some

         22  subway, for new subway entrances, we are allowing

         23  that the street- level area of that subway be able

         24  to count as pedestrian circulation space, similar to

         25  existing subway stations.
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          2                 And then, the other correction,

          3  there's a number of technical corrections and

          4  clarifications relating to parking, building height

          5  measurements, floor area regulations.

          6                 So that's the summary of the

          7  application.

          8                 MR. COMPTON: Good morning.  My name

          9  is Lee Compton. I'm Chair of Community Board Four.

         10  Thank you very much for the opportunity to appear

         11  before you.

         12                 I'd like to start by saying that it

         13  is an unexpected, but surprisingly pleasant

         14  experience to be sitting before you speaking

         15  wholeheartedly in favor of something from City

         16  Planning.  It is an unusual experience for our

         17  Board, and we are very happy to be experiencing it.

         18                 I also would very much like to thank

         19  Council Member Quinn and her staff, and especially

         20  Danielle DiScerbo for their extraordinary work when

         21  Will said, that literally going word by word through

         22  it, this has happened all day, many days late into

         23  the night.  It has been an extraordinary service to

         24  our community, and we are very grateful to you.

         25                 We also, as was noted, a co-
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          2  applicant, and we are very pleased to have that

          3  status.  It is an interesting position. We support

          4  the corrections and fixes that Will has talked

          5  about. They are important to the community.

          6                 But of particular significance to the

          7  community are the tenant protections that these text

          8  amendments change.  This area, as you can well

          9  imagine, is going to be under enormous development

         10  pressure.  These are safeguards designed to help

         11  people who otherwise would lose their homes, retain

         12  their homes.  And we are delighted to see them here.

         13                 We are very pleased to ask you to

         14  support the text amendments.  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: First, I just

         16  again want to thank the Community Board and City

         17  Planning, and the Committee for all of their work

         18  and for working with all of us to be so diligent on

         19  the follow up on Hudson Yards, and follow up on West

         20  Chelsea, which we'll also see at some point.  I

         21  think it's really a credit to all of us that we were

         22  able to accomplish the Hudson Yards rezoning, but

         23  then that we recognize that nothing is perfect, and

         24  we'll have to continue to tweak things.

         25                 I want to say, I think it's really
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          2  noteworthy that with the anti- harassment tenant,

          3  and tenement protections we're talking about today,

          4  I think a great thing happened.  We went through

          5  this process, and we realized that something that

          6  has been unprecedented and really a historic thing

          7  in the City, the Clinton Special District

          8  protections.  We didn't just extend those.  That

          9  would have been the easiest thing to do.  We went

         10  back and figured out how to make them even better

         11  than they were.  And then added them to Hudson Yards

         12  and to the place they began.  And I just think

         13  that's a great example of government being

         14  constantly evolving and moving forward and

         15  responding to the needs of New Yorkers.  And I think

         16  we should be very, very proud of that.

         17                 And I want to thank everyone for

         18  their kind words about the work my office did, but I

         19  just want to be very clear, it was entirely done by

         20  Danielle DiScerbo.  I actually had little to do with

         21  crossing the t's or dotting the i's.  So she really

         22  deserves the lion's share of credit for this.  I

         23  wanted to particularly thank her on the record, and

         24  ask the Committee to vote in support of this, and I

         25  look forward to resolving the theater issue, and
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          2  having all Hudson Yard FUCAs done.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Very good.  Any

          4  other questions from Council Members?  Thank you

          5  gentlemen.

          6                 There is no one signed up to speak on

          7  any of the City Planning items, so I'll close the

          8  public hearing on all of them.

          9                 We have two more items to go through.

         10    We'll try and take them in quick order.  Let's do

         11  Land Use No. 63620065107TCM, application by Gadberry

         12  Pizza to establish, maintain, and operate an

         13  unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 69- 71 Seventh

         14  Avenue South. This lies within Council Member

         15  Christine Quinn's district.

         16                 Sir.

         17                 MR. KELLY: Good morning Chair Avella

         18  and Council Members.  My name is Michael Kelly.  I'm

         19  representing Gadberry Pizza, Inc.  We originally

         20  filed for a sidewalk cafe with four tables and eight

         21  chairs.  We've made an agreement with Council Member

         22  Quinn's office to reduce that to two tables and four

         23  chairs, and to limit the length of the cafe to 12

         24  feet.  Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to
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          2  confirm that reducing it to 12 feet starting five

          3  feet from the corner.

          4                 MR. KELLY: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          6  Great.  That is everything.  And I want to thank you

          7  for working with us on this. Thank you for  --

          8                 MR. KELLY: Thank you.  Your office

          9  was very helpful.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And I want to

         11  thank Kate Seely- Kirk from my office for resolving

         12  this matter.  Exactly, I know.  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Wait, wait, wait.

         14    Any questions from my colleagues?  Now you could

         15  go.

         16                 I see no one else signed up to speak

         17  on this item. I will close the public hearing.  We

         18  will move on to the last item.

         19                 Land Use No. 569C050049ZMX,

         20  application submitted by Ansano Construction

         21  Corporation for amendment of Zoning Map, changing

         22  from an existing R- 1 district to a C2- 1 district,

         23  property bounded by Dewey Avenue and other streets.

         24  This application lies within Council Member Madeline

         25  Provenzano's district.
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          2                 MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning Chair,

          3  Council Members. My name is Zara Fernandez.  I'm

          4  here from Sheldon Lobel and Associates.

          5                 This is an application at City

          6  Planning for a Zoning Map change.  And the site is

          7  Lot 1, Block 5576 in the Bronx, which is bounded by

          8  East Tremont Avenue, Sampson Avenue, Revere Avenue,

          9  Dewey Avenue, and the Cross Bronx Expressway

         10  extension.

         11                 The proposed rezoning consists of two

         12  map changes. The first is a C2- 1/R4- 1 to a C2-

         13  2/R4- 1.  And the second is the R4 1 to a C2- 2/R4-

         14  1.  The combined map changes would bring the

         15  subject's site into compliance with parking

         16  regulations, and alleviate the need for the New York

         17  City Board of Standards and Appeals Special Permit

         18  to reduce the current parking requirement which is

         19  currently in place.

         20                 The site is approximately 24,279

         21  square feet, and currently improved with a 10,650

         22  square foot building fronting East Tremont Avenue.

         23  The R4- 1 portion is vacant.  The building currently

         24  contains professional office space, and houses a

         25  local City Bank branch.
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          2                 In 1988, the owner obtained a BSA

          3  Special Permit, which reduced the parking

          4  requirement from 71 to 27 parking spaces. However,

          5  the current parking lot has 34 parking spaces, which

          6  is seven more than the BSA's Special Permit

          7  requires.  The BSA Special Permit expires in

          8  December, 2008.  The applicant wishes to eliminate

          9  the need for the BSA Special Permit, and thereby

         10  have the site comply with the applicable zoning

         11  regulations, including parking as of right.  A

         12  complying site would alleviate the problem of

         13  inflexibility among lending institutions, in

         14  extending credit for capital improvement or other

         15  needs, against properties encumbered with such

         16  tenuous restrictions.

         17                 The zoning would also allow for more

         18  parking spaces, better traffic circulation within

         19  the lot, and help to eliminate potentially dangerous

         20  traffic conditions, by allowing for better street

         21  access.

         22                 Commercial zoning designations that

         23  carry identical or more liberal parking requirements

         24  exist along East Tremont Avenue, adjacent and

         25  immediately north of the site.  As the site is
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          2  separated from the area described by only the Cross

          3  Bronx Expressway, and relates directly to this area,

          4  a commercial overlay carrying a similar parking

          5  requirement is appropriate.

          6                 Revere Avenue forms a natural

          7  boundary between the commercially oriented areas to

          8  the east, and the more residentially oriented areas

          9  to the west.  The portion of the site fronting Dewey

         10  Avenue is surrounded by commercial uses to the north

         11  and east, and relates more to these commercial areas

         12  than to the residential areas to the west.  As a

         13  result, extending a commercial overlay to this

         14  portion of the subject's site is appropriate.

         15                 Directly across Dewey Avenue from the

         16  site, is a one- story field office building,

         17  utilized by the New York City Department of

         18  Transportation.  The small block that the DOT

         19  building exists on, carries a commercial overlay,

         20  and is served by the busy Cross Bronx Expressway

         21  extension road.

         22                 The site's relationship to the

         23  surrounding commercial area not only makes the

         24  commercial overlay appropriate, but it's also not a

         25  desirable site for residential development. And just
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          2  regarding the ULURP process, the Community Board,

          3  Borough President, and City Planning Commission all

          4  voted in favor of this application with no

          5  conditions.

          6                 Are there any questions?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I don't.  For the

          8  record, the application was approved by the

          9  Community Board 28, zero to one. It was also

         10  approved by the Borough President's Office, and

         11  Madeline Provenzano is in favor of the application.

         12                 Any questions from Committee Members?

         13                 Thank you.  There was no one signed

         14  up to speak on this item, so I will close the public

         15  hearing on this matter.

         16                 And I will ask Counsel to call the

         17  roll.  The Chair recommends approval of all the

         18  items we've heard today.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Quinn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Dilan.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          4  McMahon.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Aye on all

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          7  Seabrook.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         10  five in the affirmative and none in the negative,

         11  and no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         12  approved and referred to the full Committee.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I will keep the

         14  vote open for five minutes.

         15                 Five minutes.

         16                 That closes this meeting of the

         17  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises.

         18                 (The following written testimony was

         19  read into the record.)

         20

         21

         22  Written Testimony Of:

         23  James Molinaro

         24  Submitted by Robert Englert

         25
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          2                 Good morning, Chair Avella, and

          3  distinguished Committee Members.

          4                 My name is Robert Engleert.  I am

          5  Director of Land Use for Staten Island Borough

          6  President James P. Molinaro.  I am here today to

          7  present testimony on behalf of the Borough

          8  President, in support of Department of City Planning

          9  applications to rezone commercial areas within the

         10  Borough, and to amend the regulations for commercial

         11  development in Lower Density Growth Management

         12  Areas.

         13                 These initiatives are the next phase

         14  of zoning issues originally identified by the

         15  Mayor's Growth Management Task Force in the final

         16  report issued December 2, 2003.  The proposed

         17  actions will not induce or preclude new development

         18  in commercial districts, but rather, ensure that new

         19  commercial development is consistent with the area's

         20  existing patterns of development.

         21                 To properly achieve the Task Force's

         22  stated objectives, a combination of commercial rule

         23  changes and rezonings has been proposed.  The rule

         24  changes will discourage inappropriate residential

         25  development, encourage commercial development and
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          2  preserve Staten Island's legacy of Town Centers.

          3  The rezonings will remove existing commercial

          4  districts where residences currently exist and will

          5  ensure that future development, in the affected

          6  areas, will follow the appropriate new rules.

          7                 Each of the areas proposed for

          8  rezoning have been carefully studied with an eye

          9  toward preserving the character of the existing town

         10  center and proposing a revision that compliments the

         11  size and massing of the build commercial

         12  environment.

         13                 I thank the Mayor for his continued

         14  support and compliment the Department of City

         15  Planning for expeditiously preparing these

         16  proposals.  These amendments are the next step to

         17  better manage development, and preserve and

         18  reinforce the quality of life and traditional

         19  neighborhood character for Staten Island.

         20                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         21  address the Committee.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)

         23
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